
The deadline to submit proposals has been extended to April 6, 2010  
(No later than 5:00 p.m. Central Time) 

 
Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System 

Trust and Custody RFP Clarification Questions  
 

 
Please provide a list of Systems investment managers including their respective 
benchmarks.     

 
1. Please provide a detailed asset listing of all alternative assets with market values, asset 

description and vehicle type (LP, Hedge, MF etc).   
 
Please refer to Updated Appendix C of the RFP.  Manager G, H, I and S are 
commingled open ended Hedge Fund Strategies. Manager T is a commingled open 
end Core Real Estate Fund. Managers U and V are Value Add closed end Real 
Estate Funds.  All of these items require single line item reporting.   

 
2. Are there any specific requirements for the posting of commingled/mutual fund 

vehicle transactional and positional information?  
 
There are no specific requirements other than the data is recorded in a timely and 
accurate manner. 
 
 When are these statements generally available and in what format?  

 
 Please see Updated Appendix C. 

 
3. In Appendix C of the RFP 3 managers are identified by asset class "long short 

equity".  Please verify that these managers are shorting equities in addition to 
maintaining long positions.  Please define operational process in terms of parties 
involved and what positions are maintained by broker, if any.  Please provide detailed 
asset lists and annual trade volumes.   

 
These are all commingled funds and require only single line item reporting. 

 
4. Please detail the annualized total market value and transaction volumes of any Bank 

Loans maintained by the System.  Does the System require any specific reporting 
relating to Bank Loans?  Please comment on timing, feeds that may be required, 
Credit agreement review needs and manager reconciliation processes.    

    
Not Applicable. The System does not currently invest in Bank Loans through any of 
its separate account managers. 
 

5. Cash investments/sweep accounts 
a. What are the anticipated flows for each account? 
b. What investment vehicles are used today for each account? 



c. Please provide an annual average cash balance to be maintained in bidder’s 
short term cash STIF vehicle.  
a. For Fiscal Year 09 cash in-flows ranged between $4 million and $18 
million per month while cash outflows ranged between approximately $12 
million and $15 million each month.  
 
b. The System maintains a single STIF account for operating purposes. 
 
c. The System attempts to hold cash levels low and utilizes external flows 
and manager draw downs to pay benefits and expenses. 
 

6. Can you provide your most current monthly, quarterly and annual custodial fees 
inclusive of all services requested in the RFP? 

 
  The annual custodial fee is $251,000 
  The annual performance fee is $30,000  

 
 

7. Please enter your needs for Performance Measurement, Characteristics, Attribution, 
and Value-at-Risk. 

Scope of Services Performance Characteristics Attribution Value-at-
Risk 

Required? (Yes/No) Yes No Yes No 
Monthly or Daily? Monthly NA Quarterly NA 
Equity, Fixed Income, or Both? Both NA Both NA 
Include Commingled Accounts? 
(Yes/No) 

Yes NA NA NA 

Based on Account Returns or 
Holdings? 

— 
 

NA Holdings NA 

At what level? (total fund, asset 
class, sector, country, and/or 
security) 

Total fund, 
asset class, 
manager 

 NA NA 

 
8. Plan & Manager Analysis  

a. Are you interested in Wilshire TUCS reporting that compares a plan’s 
performance to the performance of similarly sized plans?  If so, do you 
require at the plan level, asset class level, or manager level? 

b.  Are you interested in reporting that shows how your investment managers 
stack up against their peers? 

c. Are you interested in having access to an online manager universe tool that 
shows how various investment managers stack up against each other? 

d. Are you interested in having access to an online tool that helps you 
experiment with different asset allocations and manager selections to see 
which ones may generate the optimal risk-adjusted returns? 

 
The System currently utilizes its Investment Consultant, Asset Consulting Group, 
for peer group information and asset allocation 



 
 
9. Please provide a complete list of benchmarks that you utilize.   
  
Please see updated Appendix C.   

     
10. Reporting 

a. Please provide your reporting deadlines following completion of accounting. 
b. Please provide a list of all necessary key reports and samples/examples 

(electronic or hardcopy). Identify which are needed daily, weekly, monthly, 
quarterly, for auditors, annual reports or for the Board of Directors.   

c. Do you require data files to be provided by your custodian to you, 
consultants, or other parties? If yes, what format and for what purpose? 

 
a. Monthly performance reports must be provided by the Wednesday prior 

to the 3rd Friday of each month. 
 
b. We require monthly transaction and ledger reports, monthly 

performance reports, quarterly attribution reports, quarterly 
brokerage transaction analysis reports, annual reports required to 
support our independent accountants in the preparation of our 
annual financial statements. 

 
c. Our consultant needs to be provided with monthly statements of market 

values and transactions via CD or mail. Online access for transactions 
and holdings are necessary.  Daily electronic data files if custodian has 
Advent interface.   

 
11. Do you utilize 4-4-5 accounting? 

 
NO 
 
12. How many accounting systems will we need to link to? 

 
Not Applicable 

 
 
13. Please provide details of third party vendors you utilize today (e.g., BARRA, FactSet) 

that you expect us to replicate.        
 

Not applicable. 
 
14. Please provide details of the requirements for FTP (File Transfer Protocol) feeds to 

or from any third party systems. 
 
 Are expectation is that industry best practices are utilized 
 



15. Do you currently direct your FX activity through your current custodian(s) bank(s)? 
If so, do you evaluate each FX trade rate prior to execution? What if any, percent of 
FX is traded third party? 

 
 

FX activity is currently at the discretion of the Investment managers who are 
trading in foreign currencies. Over the last nine years, approximately 65% of the 
approximately 11,500 fx trades were done by third parties. 
 
16. Can you please provide a sample of your current GASB 40 reporting? 
 
  Please refer to pages 7-11 for a sample of the System’s GASB 40 report.   
 
17. Question 11. in Section XI Other of the RFP refers to a “Client Profile”.  Is there 

something in the RFP that delineates this definition? 
 

The “Client Profile” refers to the information included in Updated Appendix 
C. 

 
18. Please define System expectation in Section 5 of the RFP Directed Brokerage,  

        a.  Please comment on system expectation that custodian establish "contractual" 
  relationships with various brokers.   

          b. Please comment on intent of distributing quarterly to System brokerage fees. 
   How is this process maintained currently? 
 
This section refers to Custodian’s ability to monitor and report activity associated 
with Commission Recapture programs.   
 
19.  Please detail any assets under management as asset classes managed by incumbent 

custodian.  Should the System select a new custodian will successful bidder have an 
opportunity to provide investment management services?  

 
 

All of the Systems passive investment strategies are managed by an affiliate of the 
Current Custodial Bank. The System currently has RFP’s outstanding for Passive 
Investment Management Services as well, and candidate Custodian Banks that offer 
passive investment management services are eligible to bid on those services as well. 

    
 

20. Securities Lending 
a. Is cash collateral currently in a commingled pool or separate account? 
  
b. Can you provide what the current contracted securities lending splits are for 

domestic equities, fixed income and global securities? 
 

The System is currently utilizing a commingled pool for cash collateral 
investments. 
 



The current contracted securities lending split is 75/25.  
 

21. If you require a detail list of portfolio holdings please contact Duane Michael at 
dmichael@oklaosf.state.ok.us to obtain this information. 

 



 
Updated APPENDIX C 

 
SYSTEM ACCOUNTS INFORMATIONS  

 
System Background: 
  
The client is a $1.5 billion Public Defined Benefit Plan.  The services requested for the Plan are for Global 
Master Trust/Custody services excluding the benefit payment function, and a securities lending program.   
 
Portfolio Structure/Activity:  The client has the following manager structure: 
 

Manager A Large Cap Equity Separate Account $48.287   129 securities Russell 1000 Value Custodian/Daily

Manager B Large Cap Equity Separate Account $50.191 60 securities Russell 1000 Value Custodian/Daily

Manager C Large Cap Equity Commingled Fund $82.484    1 line item S&P 500 2nd BD
Manager D Large Cap Equity Separate Account $128.684 425 securities S&P 500 Custodian/Daily

Manager E Large Cap Equity Commingled Fund $86.952 1 line item S&P 500 Equal Weighted 2nd BD
Manager F Large Cap Equity Separate Account $91.707 34 securities Russell 1000 Growth Custodian/Daily

Manager G Long Short Equity Commingled Fund $7.205 1 line item Wilshire 5000 10th BD

Manager H Long Short Equity Commingled Fund $75.554 1 line item Wilshire 5000/HFRI FOF Strategic 5th/6th BusDay
Manager I Long Short Equity Commingled Fund $49.633 1 line item Wilshire 5000/HFRI FOF Strategic 10th BD

Manager J Small Cap Equity Separate Account $35.622 93 securities Russell 2000 Value Custodian/Daily
Manager K Small Cap Equity Separate Account $37.447 53 securities Russell 2500 Value Custodian/Daily

Manager L Small Cap Equity Separate Account $83.547 44 securities Russell 2000 Growth Custodian/Daily

Manager M International Equity Separate Account $99.753 454 securities MSCI EAFE Custodian/Daily
Manager N International Equity Separate Account $93.910 66 securities MSCI EAFE Custodian/Daily

Manager O Fixed Income Commingled Fund $181.359 1 line item Barclays Capital Aggregate 2nd BD
Manager P Fixed Income Commingled Fund $13.325 1 line item Barclays Capital Aggregate 2nd BD

Manager Q Fixed Income Commingled Fund $122.561 1 line item Barclays Capital Intermediate 2nd BD

Manager R Global Fixed Income Separate Account $30.812 65 Securities Citigroup World Gov't. Bond Custodian/Daily
Manager S Hedge Fund Commingled Fund $111.405 1 line item HRFI FOF Conservative 10th BD

Manager T Real Estate Commingled Fund $43.614 1 line item NCREIF Qtrly - End of 
1,4,7,10

Manager U Real Estate Commingled Fund $22.780 1 line item NCREIF Qtrly Valuations 
with Capital Call 
Activity

Manager V Real Estate Commingled Fund $5.306 1 line item NCREIF Qtrly Valuations 
with Capital Call 
Activity

Manager W Cash Account $11.007 Custodian/Daily

# of Securities 
/Line Items Benchmark

Availability of 
Valuation Asset Class Fund Type

Market 
Value ($Mil)

 
 

 
 Anticipated number of accounts = 23 (1 account for each strategy listed above; each commingled fund 

should have its own account)  
 Total value of all accounts is approximately $1.5 billion 
 Estimated transactions = 14,500 per year (7,500 buys and 7,000 sells)  
 Estimated wire transfers = 360  per  year  (320 incoming and 40 outgoing)   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The System’s Sample GASB 40 Report 


















